FAULT LOCATION IN DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM BASED ON VOLTAGE SAG ANALYSIS

MUHAMAD FIRDAUS BIN AHMAD

FACULTY OF ENGINEERING

UNIVERSITY OF MALAYA

KUALA LUMPUR

2020

FAULT LOCATION IN DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM BASED ON VOLTAGE SAG ANALYSIS

MUHAMAD FIRDAUS BIN AHMAD

DISSERTATION SUBMITTED IN FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER ENGINEERING

FACULTY OF ENGINEERING UNIVERSITY OF MALAYA KUALA LUMPUR

2020

UNIVERSITY OF MALAYA

ORIGINAL LITERARY WORK DECLARATION

Name of Candidate: Muhamad Firdaus Bin Ahmad

Matric No.: KQI160016

Name of Degree: Master of Engineering

Title of Dissertation: Fault location in the distribution system based on voltage sag analysis

Field of Study: Power System

I do solemnly and sincerely declare that:

- (1) I am the sole author/writer of this Work;
- (2) This Work is original;
- (3) Any use of any work in which copyright exists was done by way of fair dealing and for permitted purposes and any excerpt or extract from, or reference to or reproduction of any copyright work has been disclosed expressly and sufficiently and the title of the Work and its authorship have been acknowledged in this Work;
- (4) I do not have any actual knowledge nor do I ought reasonably to know that the making of this work constitutes an infringement of any copyright work;
- (5) I hereby assign all and every rights in the copyright to this Work to the University of Malaya ("UM"), who henceforth shall be owner of the copyright in this Work and that any reproduction or use in any form or by any means whatsoever is prohibited without the written consent of UM having been first had and obtained;
- (6) I am fully aware that if in the course of making this Work I have infringed any copyright whether intentionally or otherwise, I may be subject to legal action or any other action as may be determined by UM.

Candidate's Signature

Date:

Subscribed and solemnly declared before,

Witness's Signature

Date:

Name: Designation:

ABSTRACT

Fault in the distribution system is something that cannot be avoided. It is a recurring event that occurs due to various factors such as natural occurrence, mechanism failure, or human error. All this contributes to the phenomenon that will affect the stability of the system and result in the loss of power to the consumers. However, such a fault is something that happens unexpectedly, and it is difficult to be eliminated. Therefore, various research work has been done over the years to overcome the problem. All research is done to find the most effective method of finding the fault location in a short time. In this thesis, a way of identifying a fault location in the distribution system by using the voltage sag measurement is presented. The approach is to match the actual voltage sag magnitude with the stored database from the simulated fault. Any matching data will provide a possible fault section. Simulation result shows that it is possible to identify the fault location based on the analysis of the voltage sags.

ABSTRAK

Kegagalan di dalam sistem pengagihan adalah sesuatu yang tidak dapat dielakkan. Ia adalah kejadian berulang yang berlaku disebabkan oleh pelbagai faktor seperti kejadian semula jadi, kegagalan mekanisme, atau kesalahan manusia. Semua ini menyumbang kepada fenomena yang akan mempengaruhi kestabilan sistem dan mengakibatkan kehilangan kuasa kepada pengguna. Namun begitu, kegagalan tersebut adalah sesuatu yang berlaku tanpa diduga, dan sukar untuk menghapuskannya. Oleh kerana itu, terdapat pelbagai kerja penyelidikan telah dilakukan selama bertahun-tahun untuk mengatasi masalah tersebut. Semua penyelidikan yang dilakukan adalah bertujuan untuk mencari kaedah yang paling berkesan untuk mengenalpasti lokasi kesalahan dalam masa yang singkat. Oleh yang demikian, tesis ini menunjukkan salah satu cara untuk mengenal pasti lokasi kegagalan dalam sistem pengagihan dengan menggunakan pengukuran voltan kendur. Pendekatannya adalah untuk memadankan magnitud voltan sebenar dengan pangkalan data yang tersimpan dari simulasi kegagalan. Sebarang data yang sepadan akan memberikan kemungkinan lokasin kegagalan. Hasil dari simulasi menunjukkan bahawa terdapat kemungkinan untuk mengenal pasti lokasi kegagalan berdasarkan analisis voltan kendur.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Completion of this project was only possible due to all individuals who so freely offered their advice and encouragement in this endeavor. I would like to offer my sincere appreciation to my project supervisor, Professor Ir. Dr. Hazlie Bin Mokhlis for his guidance, valuable comments, and constructive criticism.

Of particular importance throughout this project, I would like to offer my sincere appreciation to Mr. Munir Azam Muhammad for his assistance and support in this duration of the study. Besides, I also want to thank all my colleagues who contributed.

My deepest appreciation and gratitude extended to my wife, Salwatul Ainn Binti Samsudin, my two lovely daughters, Wafa Aufiyyah and Syifaa Kamila, and my only son, Zayd Fayyad for their support and sacrifices all along with the completion of this project.

Last but not least, I would like to thank my parents, Ahmad Bin Saad and Rusiah Binti Mohamad Dom for giving their bless and always pray for my success in the world and hereafter.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABST	RACT	iii
ABST	RAK	iv
ACK	NOWLEDGEMENT	v
TABI	LE OF CONTENTS	vi
LIST	OF TABLES	. viii
LIST	OF SYMBOL AND ABBREVIATIONS	ix
СНАРТ	ER 1 : INTRODUCTION	1
1.1	Overview	1
1.2	Problem Statement	1
1.3	Objectives	2
1.4	Scope of Work	2
1.5	Report Outline	3
СНАРТ	ER 2 : LITERATURE REVIEW	4
2.1	Introduction	4
2.2	Conventional Technique	4
2.3	Travelling Wave Method	5
2.4	Impedance Based Method	7
2.5	Knowledge Based Method	. 10
2.5.	1 Artificial Neural Network	. 10
2.5.	2 Matching Approach	. 12
СНАРТ	ER 3 : METHODOLOGY	. 13
3.1	Introduction	. 13
3.2	System Modelling	. 14
3.2.	1 Network Modelling	. 14
3.2.	2 Fault Analysis	. 16
3.2	Establishment of Voltage Sag Database	. 19
3.2	Propose Faulty Section Identification	. 20
СНАРТ	ER 4 : DISCUSSION AND RESULTS	. 22
4.1	Introduction	. 22
4.2	Voltage Sag Pattern Analysis	. 22
4.3	Test Results	. 29
СНАРТ	ER 5 : CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	. 33
5.1	Conclusion	. 33
5.2	Recommendation on future works	. 34
REFE	ERENCES	. 35

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1 : Traveling wave method concept
Figure 2.2: Impedance based method
Figure 2.3: Illustration of Artificial Neural Network11
Figure 3.1: Overall work flow chart
Figure 3.2: Single line diagram of IEEE 33 bus distribution system
Figure 3.3: Snapshot of 4 feeders in the model16
Figure 3.4: Three-Phase fault block
Figure 3.5: Three-Phase block fault parameters
Figure 3.6: Concept of the matching method
Figure 4.1: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 0.001 Ω .22
Figure 4.2: SLGF voltage sag pattern for fault resistance 0.001 Ω at bus number 323
Figure 4.3: SLGF voltage sag pattern for fault resistance 0.001 Ω at bus number 1623
Figure 4.4: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 1 Ω 24
Figure 4.5: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 5 Ω 24
Figure 4.6: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 10 Ω 25
Figure 4.7: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 15 Ω 25
Figure 4.8: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 0.001 Ω
Figure 4.9: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 1 Ω 26
Figure 4.10: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 5 Ω 27
Figure 4.11: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 10 Ω 27
Figure 4.12: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 15 Ω 28
Figure 4.13: Pattern of voltage sags for SLGF and LLLGF on feeder 1

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.1: Arrangement of feeders.	15
Table 4.1: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 1	29
Table 4.2: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 2	31
Table 4.3: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 3	31
Table 4.4: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 4	31

LIST OF SYMBOL AND ABBREVIATIONS

ANN	:	Artificial Neural Network
GPS	:	Global Positioning System
IEEE	:	Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers
kV	:	Kilo Volt
LLLGF	:	Three-phase to Ground Fault
SLGF	:	Single Line to Ground Fault
p.u	:	Per unit
d_{f}	:	Fault distance
t_1	:	Reflection time from recorder to fault
t_2	:	Deflection time from fault to recorder
V	:	Velocity of the traveling wave
Ι	:	Current measured during fault
Zs	:	Source impedance
Z_1	:	Line impedance
V_s	:	Voltage source
$V_p^{(dbase)}$:	Measured voltage sag magnitude at node p
$V_q^{(dbase)}$:	Measured voltage sag magnitude at node q
$V_f^{(meas)}$:	Measured voltage sag magnitude during fault
- -		

CHAPTER 1 : INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview

Electricity is delivered to every consumer through a complex distribution network either by cables or overhead lines. The main objective of a distribution network is to deliver a reliable and quality power supply. Therefore, whenever a disruption happens, finding the cause is the most crucial thing to do since any fault that occurs within the network will cause enormous losses to utility and consumers. This situation is inevitable and can be caused by many factors, among them are from the environment and human error. The fault can occur due to lightning surges, insulation failure, and mechanical damage by the public.

Disruption to the power system is known to be caused by many factors. However, all these factors may generate different types of faults in the system. Characteristics for each type of fault may vary from one to another. Therefore, it is important to have a deep understanding of the characteristic of a specific fault so that further study can be carried on to detect the fault location.

1.2 Problem Statement

The demands of electrical supply for daily usage increases rapidly especially during the pandemic era which forces peoples to stay put at home. This situation has given no other option for power utility companies to continue providing stable and reliable power supply to the consumers. However, this process can be interrupted when a fault occurred in the distribution system which leads to power disruption on the consumers' side. Any rectification work has to be done within the specified time given or else the fault will create a more catastrophic event and might cause damage to the equipment with a total outage to the consumers. Even though fault occurrence in the distribution network is unavoidable, the downtime can be greatly improved by locating the affected point quickly. This will help to speed up the process to get the system back online and reduce the outage time which will benefit both the company and consumer. Because of the complexity of the power distribution network, most of the power utility company still practicing the traditional approach in locating the fault. Visual inspection is the most popular method in detecting fault but is very time consuming and restricted to the aboveground application only. Therefore, a method of estimating the fault location shall be considered to eliminate the constraints.

1.3 **Objectives**

By understanding the importance of fault detection in the power distribution system, the objectives are set as follows:

- 1) To model an IEEE 33 bus system by using Matlab.
- 2) To analyze voltage sag pattern that occurs in the bus system due to three phase to ground fault and single line to ground fault.
- To propose the identification of faulty section in the bus system based on voltage sag pattern.

1.4 Scope of Work

This project will focus on modeling the IEEE 33 bus system and simulate by using Matlab programming development software. The simulation will create a fault on the selected location within the bus system to produce voltage sag.

Two types of the fault will be created in the simulation which is three-phase to ground fault (LLLGF) and a single line to ground fault (SLGF) with various fault resistance of 0.001Ω , 1Ω , 5Ω , 10Ω , and 15Ω .

Results from the simulation will be used to analyze the voltage sag patterns. A set of voltage sag values at the selected buses obtain from the LLLGF and SLGF simulation will be stored as a database to identify the faulty section in the bus system.

1.5 Report Outline

The next chapters in this report are in the following sequences;

Chapter 2 will concentrate on the literature review involving previous studies of fault detection methods for the distribution network.

Chapter 3 describes the undertaking procedure and methodology of the study to meet and comply with the objectives being set forth. A method to identify the faulty section based on a voltage sag pattern will be proposed.

Chapter 4 discusses the voltage sag pattern due to fault. This chapter will compare the results obtain when the fault occurs on the bus and in between the buses.

Chapter 5 provides a conclusion for this research work and proposes for future work.

CHAPTER 2 : LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

Supplying electric power to the consumer requires a systematic distribution system that has a special position in a power system network. However, disruption may occur in the distribution system which is unavoidable and cannot be easily eliminated. This may due to the fault that will lead the currents diverted from the predetermined pathway and create an unusual situation that will then introduce extreme damage to the power system [1]. Therefore, to meet the daily demands of the electric consumptions, an electric provider must have effective planning in its distribution system which includes maintenance and preventive programs.

A good distribution system is the one that able to provide continuous power supply to the consumers. Hence, it is very crucial to locate the faulty line and location in a short period. Identification of the affected point will help the maintenance team to rectify the problem as soon as it occurred and restored the system.

This chapter will discuss various methods that can be used to identify fault locations. A review of methods used in identifying fault locations such as the conventional technique, traveling wave method, impedance-based method, and knowledge-based method is presented in the following sections.

2.2 Conventional Technique

In the early year of the distribution system, the fault is located manually by visual inspection along the line or by turning the relay on or off until the circuit breaker trips. This process will depend on luck since it is considered a try and error method and will consume a lot of time to find the fault location. Initially, the method was based on the outage report provided by the customer. The location of the customer and the connectivity of the distribution network have to be tally for the exact location of the

fault to be identified [3]. The visual inspection technique is however limited to above the ground cables only and unable to detect any fault occurs in the underground cables. For above the ground cables, the visual inspection technique can be covered by foot for small and short distance areas. For a larger area, commonly land vehicle or helicopter is used.

A destruction method of sectionalizing that involves "closing-in" on the cable fault was implemented for the detection of a fault in the underground cable. This method consists of two sub-method. The first is known as the "cut and try" method which requires isolation of the faulted section by cutting the actual cable and then individually tested it. The process will be carried on repeatedly until the faulted section is identified and removed. Because of this, the method is said to be crude and costly [2]. The second destruction method is "sectionalizing by refusing". This is done by isolating a portion of the cable loop before the primary fuse is close. Whenever the fuse opens, the next fuse is closed until the faulted section is identified. The application of this method is however will cause damage to the customer and utility equipment.

2.3 Travelling Wave Method

The traveling wave method is based on the reflection and transmission of the fault generated while the wave moving across the distribution network. The illustration of this concept is shown in figure 2.1.



Figure 2.1 : Traveling wave method concept

From the illustration shown, the fault distance from the record node, d_f , can be calculated from the following equation:

$$d_f = \frac{v \times (t_2 - t_1)}{2}$$
(2.1)

In this equation, v is the velocity of the traveling wave with the time taken of t_1 for the traveling wave to reach the fault location from the record node. Once the traveling wave reaches the fault, it will reflect the wave to the record node with the time taken of t_2 [4].

Paper [5] explains the use of the traveling waves to detect fault location at a single location in the distribution feeder. The approach used in this paper is by making a comparison on the measured distance of each peak in the high-frequency current signals with known reflection points. A transient power system simulator is used to model the actual network with the possible fault location and the simulation results are then cross-checked against the signal from the real network. The paper, later on, concludes that the suggested method can accurately locate a fault by using a measurement at a single location.

If a fault occurs in a power system with a non-effective grounded neutral, it will produce a very low magnitude of fault current which renders it very difficult to identify the fault location. To overcome this problem, paper [6] suggested a new algorithm based on improved morphological gradient. In this traveling wave method, the algorithm will select the current traveling wave that contains fault signal characteristics before extracting the α -mode by phase module transformation and structuring the morphological filter to filtrate the α -mode. The result from this paper shows that the algorithm is simple with less calculation but has some practical value. Paper [7] introduced a method to detect the fault location with a wavelet approach. The method is based on a multi-terminal traveling wave with a device that able to identify traveling waves that are installed in every transformer. The method is then simulated by the ATP software with the result that showing the fault could be located quickly and accurately.

The application of a traveling wave-based method to locate a fault in a power system without the use of a global positioning system (GPS) is described in [8]. The transient waves were extracted from the recorded waves at the busbar by using wavelet denoising. The extracted wave carries information about the characteristic of the fault and hence was used in the Artificial Neural Network (ANN) to locate the fault. Even though the proposed method has reduced the cost by not using the GPS, the error in determining the fault location is slightly higher.

A method for locating faults based on wave traveling in real-time is proposed in paper [9]. The approach is based on two terminals which link to the end of a transmission line via a control network. Two potential circumstances of low and high data transmission latency are being suggested for the system. The benefit of the approach is that both terminal data can be utilized in synchronization or nonsynchronization.

2.4 Impedance Based Method

The impedance-based method is typically used to determine the location of fault from a voltage or current measurement at the controlled substation using impedance from the monitored node. Based on the Ohms Law, a monitoring node will use the voltage and current to assess failure as seen in figure 2.2.



Figure 2.2: Impedance based method

In a faulty condition, the measurement node will record the fundamental components of current and voltage. The fault distance will then be determined from the following expression:

$$d_f = \frac{V_f}{I \times Z_1} \tag{2.2}$$

Where d_f is the fault distance from the measured node, V_f and I are the voltage and current measured during the fault, Z_1 is the line impedance per unit length, V_s is the source voltage and Z_s is the source impedance.

Following the expression in (2.2), different methods based on impedance exist. 10 different fault location method based on impedance [11] to [20] were compared in [10] to evaluate its efficiency. All approaches methods were only analyzing voltage and current measurements at the monitored substation. The analysis that was done by this paper also considered the essential aspects of each system. Power system topology, line, and load models and the need for additional information are relevant aspects that distinguish one method from another. When detecting single-phase faults, the general outcomes of all of the proposed approaches demonstrated good performance. This paper focuses on the exactness of the difference between the fault, though, and does not address the multiple fault positions.

Multiple fault locations are a typical issue in most impedance related approaches using a single measurement caused by multiple electrical distances. For a complex distribution network with a lot of branches, the possibility of having multiple fault location increase significantly. Therefore, paper [21] provides a computational approach to solve the problems of multiple fault locations in the impedance-based method by using available current measurements and voltage fundamentals in the power substation. The faulty location is identified in this method based on the performance of the threephase measurement for each lateral position, provided that the load or line parameters are different. Nevertheless, because the load current is ignored, the method may generate incorrect fault distances.

Paper [22] is using the same approach as in paper [21] to overcome the problem with multiple fault locations by considering the pre-fault current in the faulted feeder. In this method, the various fault location possibilities are resolved by calculating the fault current in the healthy phases. By doing so, it implies that the accuracy of the fault distance is more accurate. However, both approaches in [21] and [22] are more suitable in the unbalanced system.

An improved method for finding faults in the power distribution system that is highly reliable is proposed in paper [23]. The proposed algorithm produces a fifth-order algebraic equation of fault distance using the phase domain of the distributed parameter line model, allowing the accuracy of the determined fault distance for any kind of fault to be improved. The proposed method is evaluated under various fault resistances where the findings indicate a low sensitivity to this parameter. To assess the effectiveness of the proposed method, the modified IEEE 34 Node Test Feeder is used and its efficacy and effectiveness are demonstrated.

2.5 Knowledge Based Method

Due to the complexity of distribution systems and different uncertainty factors, such as cable length and unknown fault resistance which are difficult to address by using impedance and traveling wave techniques, a method based on knowledge has been explored for finding faults. The knowledge based method is based on various approaches, for example, Artificial Neural Network (ANN) and Matching Approach.

2.5.1 Artificial Neural Network

The Artificial Neural Network (ANN) is one of the efficient methods for solving several problems in the classification and optimization of engineering. The ability to detect complex patterns has also made it possible to locate the fault. Such an approach may be of great assistance to operators or engineers. With this approach, the time factor is greatly decreased and human error is avoided.

Figure 2.3 provides an overall concept of ANN in which the training input can be based on measuring data such as voltage, current, circuit breaker status, and feeder with the fault location as the target output.



Figure 2.3: Illustration of Artificial Neural Network

To identify and locate faults in the distribution network, a feed-forward ANN approach is used in [24]. To locate fault the system uses fault voltage and current samples obtained from a typical radial distribution system. Different types of fault, location, resistance, and angle of inception of the fault have been tested in the proposed method and up to 3% error was produced in the analyzed test cases. The advantage of using ANN is that data reflecting modifications to the current system could be trained off-line and it can quickly identify the on-line fault location accurately.

The major downside of ANN is that a well-trained ANN algorithm is highly dependent on the quantity and consistency of the trained data. Despite its simplicity in the implementation, however, the performance of the method will be affected by a lack of information. Other issues with this approach are that it has slow convergence in the training phase and that it is important to evaluate correct parameters such as hidden units, layers, learning rate, and momentum values. Furthermore, when there are adjustments to the system, the ANN algorithm needs to be retrained.

2.5.2 Matching Approach

The matching approach is another knowledge-based method that compares the measured to the simulated data. Typically, the fault location is determined from the recorded voltage sag or current data.

Paper [25] and [26] are among the earliest reported work that using voltage sag to locate the fault. The papers use an 11 kV distribution network to estimate the faulty section. For a comparison to be made, a fault was created at various locations via simulation to generate simulated voltage sag and stored in a database. The measured voltage sag is compared to the voltage sag database when a fault occurs in real-time. The fault section is then can be identified when the actual voltage sag match with the database. This approach can be considered as economical for implementation since voltage sag measurement is only required at the primary substation.

The drawback of this technique is that it depends entirely on the simulated database to find a fault. Therefore, the process of creating a voltage sag database is lengthy since it requires simulation at all nodes and the database needs to be updated whenever there are changes in the real network.

In summary, the reviewed papers addressed in this chapter indicate that each method developed to identify the fault location is based on a particular condition and assumption which depends on the complexity of the network. This shows that no single method can solve all the problems that arise. Therefore, in order to make any method more effective, the fundamental working principle must be thoroughly understood.

CHAPTER 3 : METHODOLOGY

3.1 Introduction

Various methods for fault detection has been discussed in Chapter 2. It is understood that the most important thing to be considered in finding the fault is to detect the location quickly and precisely. This will benefit in reducing the outage time significantly and the system will be able to go back online within the specified time given.

The first step in this research is to model a distribution bus system. A single line diagram of the IEEE33 bus distribution system is used as a reference. A completely constructed 33 bus distribution network is needed in this research to generate a set of databases.

The next step is to create a fault at the selected location. The type of fault to be used in the simulation is firstly determined before the simulation takes place. Several simulations are required with different input of fault parameters to generate a strong database. The overall work flow chart used in this research is shown in Figure 3.1.



Figure 3.1: Overall work flow chart

3.2 System Modelling

3.2.1 Network Modelling



Figure 3.2: Single line diagram of IEEE 33 bus distribution system

IEEE 33 bus distribution network which is used in this research to simulate the fault at the selected location is illustrated in figure 3.2 above. This system consists of 33 buses and 32 lines and has a voltage of 12.66 kV. The bus is indicated from number 1 to 33. This system is made of 4 feeders in total. The arrangement of feeders can be seen in Table 3.1.

Number of feeders	Bus
1	1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18
2	1,2,19,20,21,22
3	1,2,3,23,24,25
4	1,2,3,4,5,6,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33

Table 3.1: Arrangement of feeders

The model begins with the Three Phase Source block to introduce a balanced 3phase voltage source with an internal R-L impedance. The source block is then connected to the bus number 1 and the Three-Phase Series RLC Branch block. This block incorporates three balanced branches, each of which consists of a resistor, an inductor, or a capacitor, or a series of combinations. The model is later on expanded to 4 feeders based on the single line diagram as in figure 3.3. In this model, the Powergui block is used to provide the discretization of the electrical system for a solution at fixed time steps.



Figure 3.3: Snapshot of 4 feeders in the model

3.2.2 Fault Analysis

This research focuses on two types of faults, which are single line to ground fault (SLGF) and three-phase to ground fault (LLLGF). A single line to ground fault is the most common fault that occurs in the distribution system. It happened when one of the power lines connected to the ground or in contact with the neutral line. This occasion may result from many reasons due to the falling of a tree, lightning surge, high-speed wind, or any other unknown reason.

In order to create fault on the network model, the three-phase fault block is used to implement a three-phase circuit breaker where the opening and closing time can be controlled. The three-phase fault block as shown in figure 3.4 uses three breaker blocks that can be individually switched on and off to program phase to phase faults, phase to ground faults, or a combination of phase to phase and ground faults.



Figure 3.4: Three-Phase fault block

Since two types of fault are required in this analysis, the parameter should be carefully selected before simulation to avoid an incorrect set of data being recorded. As can be seen in figure 3.5, fault between phase A and ground is selected to represent a single line to ground fault. Otherwise, all fault between phases A, B, C, and the ground is selected for the three-phase to ground fault.

Block Parameters: Three-Phase Fault	\times
Three-Phase Fault (mask) (link)	
Implements a fault (short-circuit) between any phase and the ground. When the external switching time mode is selected, a Simulink logical signal is used to control the fault operation.	
Parameters	
Initial status: 0	:
Fault between:	
Phase A Phase B Phase C Ground	
Switching times (s): [1/60 5/60] : Exter	nal
Fault resistance Ron (Ohm): 1	
Ground resistance Rg (Ohm): 1	:
Snubber resistance Rs (Ohm): 1e6	:
Snubber capacitance Cs (F): inf	:
Measurements Fault voltages	•
OK Cancel Help App	ly

Figure 3.5: Three-Phase block fault parameters

The three-phase fault block will produce measurement in terms of fault voltages. For each type of fault created at the selected point, several fault voltage measurement will be taken at fault resistance of 0.001Ω , 1Ω , 5Ω , 10Ω , and 15Ω .

3.2 Establishment of Voltage Sag Database

Once the distribution network model and the fault are successfully created, the next step is to establish a database from the analytical voltage sags. This can be achieved by recording all the voltage sags value in the database after simulating fault. The procedure to establish the database are as follows:

- i) Single line to ground fault is simulated at all buses for fault resistance of 0.001Ω .
- ii) Measurement is taken for the lowest magnitude of the fault voltage and stored in the database.
- iii) Steps (i) and (ii) are repeated for fault resistance of 1Ω , 5Ω , 10Ω , and 15Ω .
- iv) Steps (i) to (iii) are repeated for fault simulated at the section in between the bus.
- v) Steps (i) to (iv) are repeated for the three-phase to ground fault.

The process to establish the database is lengthy if it is done manually. Therefore, an automate process can be carried out by using the script as below:

clear all
close all
clc
timeTS = (0:0.001:0.15)';
CBStats1 = [zeros(length(timeTS),31)];
resistance=[0.001,1,5,10,15];
y=1;
for j=1:5
 fault_resistance=ones(31,1)*resistance(j);
 for i=1:31

CBStats=CBStats1;

CBStats(:,i)=1;

siminCB = timeseries(CBStats,timeTS);

simName = 'filename';

simIn = Simulink.SimulationInput(simName);

simIn = simIn.setVariable('siminCB',siminCB);

simout = sim(simIn);

x=find(simout.simout(:,1)~=0);

result(y,:)=[i,resistance(j),min(simout.simout(x,:))];

y=y+1;

end

end

3.2 Propose Faulty Section Identification

Based on the voltage sag analysis, the faulty section can be identified by matching the measured voltage sag magnitude at the section in between the bus and the measured voltage sag magnitude took on the bus. Any fault section is identified when the measured voltage sag magnitude lies in between any two adjacent voltage sag magnitude from the database. The relationship is shown in equation 3.1.

$$V_p^{(dbase)} \le V_f^{(meas)} \le V_q^{(dbase)}$$
(3.1)

In this proposed method, the fault location is determined based on the voltage sag pattern as seen from the monitored bus. The voltage sag magnitude at every adjacent bus is measured and stored in the database. This voltage sag magnitude is represented by $V_p^{(dbase)}$ and $V_q^{(dbase)}$ in equation 3.1. $V_f^{(meas)}$ is the measured voltage sag magnitude when the fault occurred in the system. The location of the fault will then be identified once $V_f^{(meas)}$ match with any voltage sag value in the database. The concept of the matching method is illustrated in the figure 3.6 below.



Figure 3.6: Concept of the matching method

CHAPTER 4 : DISCUSSION AND RESULTS

4.1 Introduction

The result and discussion of faulty location in a distribution network based on voltage sag analysis are provided in this chapter. The identification of the faulty section can be beneficial from the pattern analysis of voltage sag variation between two adjacent nodes. The voltage sag values for three-phase to ground fault and a single line to ground fault were obtained from the simulation on each bus and in between sections.

4.2 Voltage Sag Pattern Analysis

Single line to ground fault is known as the most frequent fault that occurs in the distribution network, therefore the simulation started with SLGF. In figure 4.1, it can be seen that the measurement for voltage sag was taken at bus number 2, and the network distribution used in the simulation consists of four feeders. Figure 4.1 shows that the magnitude of voltage sag increases as the fault occurs in a distance away from the measurement point.



Figure 4.1: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 0.001 Ω

Figure 4.1 also shows that the crossover between feeder lines occurs at bus number 2. At bus number 2, crossover happened between feeder 1,3,4 and feeder 4. Another crossover is spotted at bus number 3 between feeder 1,4 and feeder 3. Then, the next crossover between feeder 1 and 4 occurs at bus number 6. This is a situation that will occur at a location where a lateral branch exists.



Figure 4.2: SLGF voltage sag pattern for fault resistance 0.001 Ω at bus number 3



Figure 4.3: SLGF voltage sag pattern for fault resistance 0.001 Ω at bus number 16

Figure 4.2 shows the depth of voltage sag magnitude when SLGF created at bus number 3 which is closer to the measurement point comparing to the depth of voltage sag magnitude when SLGF occurs at bus number 16 as shown in figure 4.3 in the same feeder line but far away from the measurement point. From both figures, it shows that the depth of voltage sag magnitude increases as the fault occurs much closer to the measurement point.

Further analysis of the voltage sag pattern for a single line to ground fault was carried on different fault resistance. The pattern for each different fault resistance is shown in figure 4.4, 4.5, 4.6, and 4.7.



Figure 4.4: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 1 Ω



Figure 4.5: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 5 Ω



Figure 4.6: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 10 Ω



Figure 4.7: SLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 15 Ω

It is clearly shown that any value of fault resistance in a single line to the ground fault will exhibit the same pattern for voltage sag magnitude. Therefore, the analysis of voltage sag pattern will be extended to a different type of fault which is three-phase to ground fault.



Figure 4.8: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 0.001 Ω



Figure 4.9: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 1 Ω



Figure 4.10: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 5 Ω



Figure 4.11: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 10 Ω



Figure 4.12: LLLGF analytical voltage sag magnitude (p.u) for fault resistance 15 Ω

By comparing the voltage sag pattern between two different types of fault, it can significantly distinguish the sag pattern between them. From the figures shown above, it is indicated that both types of fault are having the same pattern shape.

However, figure 4.13 shows that SLGF produces more severe voltage sag magnitude compare to the LLLGF.



Figure 4.13: Pattern of voltage sags for SLGF and LLLGF on feeder 1

The analysis of the voltage sag effect on the different types of fault suggests that the proposed method can be used to differentiate the fault and hence able to match the voltage sags from the fault databases and leads to the identification of fault location in a network distribution.

4.3 Test Results

Based on the simulation carried out for the single line to ground fault and threephase to ground fault, the magnitude of voltage sag (p.u) for each bus in the network distribution is stored as a database that will be used to identify the faulty section. When a fault occurs at the middle point between the buses, all possible faulted sections will be looked into. Since the sample of network distribution used in the simulation is complicated, hence there is a possibility to found multiple sections. Table 4.1 shows the number of possible faulty sections for a single line to ground fault occurs at the middle point between 2 buses in feeder 1.

Middle point fault	Possible faulty sections	Number of sections found	Identified feeder
2-3	2-3, 2-19	2	Feeder 1 and 2
3-4	3-4, 19-20, 3-23	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3
4-5	4-5, 19-20, 3-23	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3
5-6	5-6, 19-20, 3-23	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3
6-7	6-7, 19-20, 23-24, 6-26	4	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4

Table 4.1: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 1

7-8	7-8, 19-20, 23-24, 27-28	4	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4
8-9	8-9, 19-20, 23-24, 27-28	4	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4
9-10	9-10, 20-21, 27-28	3	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4
10-11	10-11, 28-29	2	Feeder 1 and 4
11-12	11-12, 28-29	2	Feeder 1 and 4
12-13	12-13, 29-30	2	Feeder 1 and 4
13-14	13-14, 30-31	2	Feeder 1 and 4
14-15	14-15, 31-32	2	Feeder 1 and 4
15-16	15-16, 32-33	2	Feeder 1 and 4
16-17	16-17, 32-33	2	Feeder 1 and 4

Table 4.1 shows that whenever a fault occurs at the middle point between 2 buses, the possibility of a faulty section can be narrowed down into several sections found and hence eliminate the unnecessary time needed for searching along the line one by one. The feeder line can also be determined and allow the maintenance team to focus only on the identified feeder and section. Table 4.2, 4.3, and 4.4 below show the extracted information for possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 2,3 and 4.

Middle point fault	Possible faulty sections	Number of sections found	Identified feeder
2-19	2-19, 2-3	2	Feeder 1 and 2
19-20	19-20, 5-6, 23-24	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3
20-21	20-21, 9-10, 27-28	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3

Table 4.2: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 2

Table 4.3: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 3

Middle point fault	Possible faulty sections	Number of sections found	Identified feeder
3-23	3-23, 5-6, 19-20	3	Feeder 1,2 and 3
23-24	23-24, 19-20, 26-27	3	Feeder 2,3 and 4

Table 4.4: Possible faulty sections for fault occurs at the middle point in feeder 4

Middle point fault	Possible faulty sections	Number of sections found	Identified feeder
6-26	6-26, 8-9, 19-20, 23-24	4	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4
26-27	26-27, 7-8, 19-20, 23-24	4	Feeder 1,2,3 and 4
27-28	27-28, 20-21, 9-10	3	Feeder 1,2 and 4

	28-29	28-29, 12-13	2	Feeder 1 and 4
	29-30	29-30, 12-13	2	Feeder 1 and 4
	30-31	30-31, 12-13	2	Feeder 1 and 4
	31-32	31-32, 14-15	2	Feeder 1 and 4
KINGIN CINARA				

CHAPTER 5 : CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

5.1 Conclusion

In this research, a method to identify a faulted section in a distribution network is presented. This method used the voltage sag pattern of the simulated distribution network and stored it as a database for matching purposes. In order to produce a constant and reliable database, the voltage sag measurement was taken at a single location only at which in this research it was taken at the bus number 2. Since this method only requires measurement of voltage sags at one point, its implementation can be considered as very economical.

The result obtained in this research which is based on computer simulation has shown that it is possible to identify fault locations based on the voltage sag data. Even though the result has shown multiple possible fault locations detected, however, at the same time it can reduce the locating time by narrowing the possibility. This will benefit the maintenance team to track down the affected section due to the fault and get the system back in time.

While the results are showing good implementation to be considered in the realtime system, there is also a lot of room for improvement.

5.2 Recommendation on future works

The following are some recommendation that can be carried out in conjunction with this research work:

- I. Develop a method to detect the fault location precisely or with fewer errors and increase its efficiency.
- II. A thorough study of the effect of voltage sags pattern on all types of fault in the distribution network.
- III. Comparing the method with other fault locating methods to see the differences in terms of accuracy.

REFERENCES

- [1] R. D. Amar Raj and S. Bhattacharjee, "Short-Circuit Fault Analysis of Three-Phase Grid Integrated Photovoltaic Power System," 2020 International Conference on Power Electronics & IoT Applications in Renewable Energy and its Control (PARC), Mathura, Uttar Pradesh, India, 2020, pp. 231-236.
- [2] IEEE Guide for Fault-Locating Techniques on Shielded Power Cable Systems -Redline," in IEEE Std 1234-2019 (Revision of IEEE Std 1234-2007) - Redline, vol., no., pp.1-110, 28 June 2019.
- [3] Mirzaei, Maryam & Kadir, Zainal & Moazami, E. & Hizam, Hashim. (2009). Review of fault location methods for distribution power system. Australian Journal of Basic and Applied Sciences. 3. 2670-2676.
- [4] Awalin, Lilik & Mokhlis, Hazlie & Abu Bakar, Ab Halim. (2012). Recent Developments in Fault Location Methods for Distribution Networks. Przeglad Elektrotechniczny. 88. 206-212.
- [5] H. Hizman, P. A. Crossley, P. F. Gale and G. Bryson, "Fault section identification and location on a distribution feeder using travelling waves," IEEE Power Engineering Society Summer Meeting, Chicago, IL, USA, 2002, pp. 1107-1112 vol.3.
- [6] J. Zhao, T. He, C. Liu and K. Li, "Travelling Wave Fault Location for Distribution Line Based on Improved Morphological Gradient Algorithm," 2016 International Symposium on Computer, Consumer and Control (IS3C), Xi'an, 2016, pp. 156-159.
- [7] H. Jia, H. Qian and F. Li, "A fault location method in distribution network with use of wavelet-based traveling-wave," 2012 International Conference on Wavelet Analysis and Pattern Recognition, Xian, 2012, pp. 307-312.
- [8] Mosavi, M. & Tabatabaei, Amir. (2014). Wavelet and Neural Network-Based Fault Location in Power Systems Using Statistical Analysis of Traveling Wave. ARABIAN JOURNAL FOR SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING. 39. 6207-6214.
- [9] Lopes, Felipe & Silva, Kleber & Costa, Flavio & Neves, W.L.A. & Fernandes, Dajo. (2014). Real-Time Traveling Wave-Based Fault Location Using Two-Terminal Unsynchronized Data. IEEE Transactions on Power Delivery.
- [10] Mora-Florez, J. & Meléndez, Joaquim & Carrillo-Caicedo, Gilberto. (2008). Comparison of impedance based fault location methods for power distribution systems. Electric Power Systems Research. 78. 657-666.
- [11] Girgis, Adly & Fallon, C.M. & Lubkeman, D.L. (1993). Fault location technique for rural distribution feeders. Industry Applications, IEEE Transactions on. 29. 1170 - 1175.
- [12] Choi, Myeon & Lee, Seung-Jae & Lee, Duck-Su & Jin, Bo-Gun. (2004). A New Fault Location Algorithm Using Direct Circuit Analysis for Distribution Systems. Power Delivery, IEEE Transactions on. 19. 35 - 41.

- [13] D. Novosel, D.H., J. Myllymaki. (1998). System for locating faults and estimating fault resistance in distribution networks with tapped loads. 1998. US Patent number 5,839,093.
- [14] Das, Ratan. (1998). Determining the locations of faults in distribution systems.
- [15] Zhu, Jun & Lubkeman, David & Girgis, Adly. (1997). Automated fault location and diagnosis on electric power distribution feeders. Power Delivery, IEEE Transactions on. 12. 801 - 809.
- [16] M. Saha, E.R. (2002). Method and device of fault location for distribution networks. *US Patent number 6,483,435*.
- [17] Sachdev, M. & Agarwal, R.. (1998). A technique for estimating transmission line fault locations from digital impedance relay measurements. IEEE Trans. Power Del. 13. 121-129.
- [18] L. Yang, C. Springs. (1998). One terminal fault location system that corrects for fault resistance effects. *US Patent number 5,773,980*.
- [19] Srinivasan, K. & St-Jacques, A. (2003). A new fault location algorithm for radial transmission lines with loads. IEEE Trans. Power Del. 18. 1679-1682.
- [20] A. Warrington, Protective relays, their theory and practice, Chapman and Hall, V2 London, 1968.
- [21] Morales-España, Germán & Mora-Florez, J. & Vargas, Hermann. (2013). Elimination of Multiple Estimation for Fault Location in Radial Power Systems by Using Fundamental Single-End Measurements.
- [22] Krishnathevar, Ramar & Ngu, E. (2010). A new impedance-based fault location method for radial distribution systems. Power and Energy Society General Meeting, 2010 IEEE. 1 - 9.
- [23] Dashti, Rahman. (2014). Accuracy improvement of impedance-based fault location method for power distribution network using distributed-parameter line model. International Transactions on Electrical Energy Systems. 24. 10.1002/etep.1690.
- [24] Aslan, Y.. (2011). An alternative approach to fault location on power distribution feeders with embedded remote-end power generation using artificial neural networks. Electrical Engineering. 94.
- [25] Li, Haiyu & Mokhar, Ahmad & Jenkins, Nick. (2005). Automatic fault location on distribution network using voltage sags measurements. 3. 1 4.
- [26] Mokhlis, Hazlie & Li, Haiyu & R., Khalid. (2010). The Application of Voltage Sags Pattern to Locate a Faulted Section in Distribution Network. International Review of Electrical Engineering-Iree. 5. 173-179.